

#### Western Cape Government • Wes-Kaapse Regering • URhulumente weNtshona Koloni

PROVINCE OF THE WESTERN CAPE

## Provincial Gazette Extraordinary

8107

Friday, 7 June 2019

PROVINSIE WES-KAAP

## Buitengewone Provinsiale Koerant

8107

Vrydag, 7 Junie 2019

Registered at the Post Office as a Newspaper

### CONTENTS

(\*Reprints are obtainable at Room M21, Provincial Legislature Building, 7 Wale Street, Cape Town 8001.)

Page

#### LOCAL AUTHORITY

| Cederberg Municipality: Approval of Property Rates Bylaw and Resolution on Levying Property Rates in Terms of Section 14 of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act 6 of 2004) 2 |
|--|
| Cederberg Municipality: Customer Care, Credit Control and Debt<br>Collection Policy  |
| Cederberg Municipality: Property Rates By-Law 29   |
| Cederberg Municipality: Property Rates Policy  |

#### NOTICE 75/2019

#### APPROVAL OF PROPERTY RATES BYLAW & RESOLUTION ON LEVYING PROPERTY RATES IN TERMS OF SECTION 14 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL PROPERTY RATES ACT, 2004. (ACT NO.6 of 2004)

## LEVYING PROPERTY RATES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1 JULY 2019 TO 30 JUNE 2020

In terms of section 14(1) and (2) of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004; the Council of Cederberg Municipality resolved by the way of council resolution, RB 1/3/6 on 31<sup>st</sup> of May 2019, to levy the rates on property reflected in the schedule below with effect from 1 July 2019.

| Category of property                     | Cent amount in the Rand rate<br>determined for the relevant property<br>category |
|--|--|
| Residential Property                     | 0.01295814   |
| Business and commercial property         | 0.01675269   |
| Industrial property                      | 0.01675269   |
| Agricultural property                    | 0.00323983   |
| Mining property                          | n.a  |
| Public service infrastructure property   | exempted   |
| Public benefit organisation property     | Exempted by application and qualifying criteria                                  |
| Public Benefit organisations may receive |  |
| a rebate of 100% if they apply and       |  |
| adhere to certain criteria.              |  |

Full details of the Council resolution and rebates, reductions and exclusions specific to each category of owners of properties or owners of specific category of properties as determined through criteria in the municipality's rates policy are available for inspection on the municipality's offices, website (<u>www.cederberg municipality.gov.za</u>) and all public libraries.

NAME: L Volschenk

DESIGNATION: MUNICIPAL MANAGER

SIGNATURE: DATE: 31<sup>st</sup> of MAY 2019

#### **BUSINESS ADDRESS**

2 A Voortrekker Road, Clanwilliam, 8135

TELEPHONIC DETAILS OF THE MUNICIPALITY

027 482 8000



## CUSTOMER CARE, CREDIT CONTROL AND DEBT COLLECTION POLICY

2019-2020

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### PAGE

| 1.  | PURPOSE   | 2  |
|-----|---|----|
| 2.  | DEFINITIONS   | 3  |
| 3.  | SUPERVISORY AUTHORITY   | 4  |
| 4.  | IMPLEMENTING AUTHORITY  | 4  |
| 5.  | CUSTOMER CARE AND MANAGEMENT                                  | 6  |
| 6.  | CUSTOMER/ CLIENT/ CREDIT CONTROL CARE OFFICIALS               | 6  |
| 7.  | COMMUNICATIONS  | 7  |
| 8.  | METERING  | 7  |
| 9.  | ACCOUNTS AND BILLING  | 8  |
| 10. | QUERIES AND APPEALS   | 8  |
| 11. | SERVICE COMPLAINTS  | 10 |
| 12. | PAYMENT FACILITIES  | 11 |
| 13. | TARGETS   | 12 |
| 14. | INDIGENT DEBTORS  | 12 |
| 15. | APPLICATIONS FOR SERVICES AND AGREEMENTS: ALL DEBTORS/CLIENTS | 12 |
| 16. | DEPOSITS  | 14 |
| 17. | PAYMENTS  | 14 |
| 18. | ARRANGEMENTS TO PAY   | 15 |
| 19. | RESTRICTION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICES                        | 17 |
| 20. | RECONNECTION OF SERVICES                                      | 18 |
| 21. | THEFT AND FRAUD   | 18 |
| 22. | INSTITUTION OF LEGAL AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS                    | 18 |
| 23. | ALLOCATION OF PART PAYMENTS                                   | 20 |
| 24. | DISHONOURED CHEQUES   | 20 |
| 25. | UNCOLLECTABLE ARREARS   | 21 |
| 26. | INTEREST ON OUTSTANDING DEBITS                                | 21 |
| 27. | REVIEW OF TARIFFS, ETC.                                       | 21 |
| 28. | TENDERS   | 22 |
| 29. | POWER OF ENTRY AND INSPECTION                                 | 22 |
| 30. | PROCEDURES AND FORMS  | 23 |
| 31. | NATIONAL CREDIT ACT   | 23 |
| 32. | COMMENCEMENT  | 23 |

5

1

#### 1. PURPOSE

- 1.1. Section 95 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, no 32 of 2000 ("the Act") requires the Municipality to:
  - 1.1.1. establish a sound customer management system;
  - 1.1.2. establish mechanisms for users of services and ratepayers to give feedback to the municipality regarding the quality of services;
  - 1.1.3. Take reasonable steps to ensure that users of services are informed of the costs of service provision, the reason for the payment of service fees, and the manner in which monies are utilised;
  - 1.1.4. Take reasonable steps to ensure the accurate measurement of consumption of services;
  - 1.1.5. Ensure the receipt by persons liable for payments of regular and accurate accounts that indicate the basis for calculating the amounts due;
  - 1.1.6. Provide accessible mechanisms for those persons to query or verify accounts and metered consumption, and appeal procedures which allow for prompt redress for inaccurate accounts;
  - 1.1.7. Provide accessible mechanisms for dealing with complaints, prompt replies and corrective action;
  - 1.1.8. Provide mechanisms to monitor response times to such complaints;
  - 1.1.9. Provide accessible pay points and other mechanisms for settling accounts or for making pre-payments for services.
- 1.2. Section 96 of the Act requires the Municipality to:
  - 1.2.1. Collect all money that is due and payable to it;
  - 1.2.2. For the abovementioned purpose, adopt, maintain and implement a credit control and debt collection policy.
- 1.3. Section 97 of the Act requires that such a policy must provide for:
  - 1.3.1. Credit control procedures and mechanisms;
  - 1.3.2. Debt collection procedures and mechanisms;

- 1.3.3. Indigent debtors;
- 1.3.4. Realistic targets;
- 1.3.5. Interest on arrears;
- 1.3.6. Extension of time for payment of accounts;
- 1.3.7. Termination of services or the restriction of the provision of services when payments are in arrears;
- 1.3.8. Matters relating to unauthorised consumption of services.
- 1.4. The purpose of this policy is to provide for the matters referred to in 1.1, 1.2 and 1.3.

#### 2. **DEFINITIONS**

In this policy:

- 2.1. Unless the context clearly requires a different interpretation, any word or expression which has been defined in the By-law shall bear the same definition when used in this policy;
- 2.2. unless the context clearly requires a different interpretation:
  - 2.2.1. "The Act" shall mean the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000;
  - 2.2.2. "The By-law" shall mean the Municipality's By-law which must be adopted to pursuant to Section 98 of the Act to give effect to this policy;
  - 2.2.3. "Customer care officials" shall mean the Customer Care Customer care officials establish in accordance with this policy;
  - 2.2.4. "Council" shall mean the Council of the Municipality;
  - 2.2.5. "Customer" shall mean any person to whom the Municipality supplies services.
  - 2.2.6. "The Executive Mayor" shall mean the Executive Mayor of the Municipality;
  - 2.2.7. "The Municipal Manager and or Delegated Manager" shall mean the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer of the Municipality.

3

#### 3. SUPERVISORY AUTHORITY

- 3.1. As provided by section 99 of the Act, the Executive Mayor of the municipality is responsible for overseeing and monitoring :
  - 3.1.1. The implementation and enforcement of this policy and the by-law;
  - 3.1.2. The performance of the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer in implementing this policy and the by-law.
- 3.2. The Executive Mayor shall at least once a year cause an evaluation or review of this policy and the by-law to be performed, in order to improve the efficiency of the municipality's credit control and debt collection mechanisms, processes and procedures, as well as the implementation of this policy.
- 3.3. The Executive Mayor shall submit a report to Council regarding the implementation of this policy at such intervals as Council may determine.

#### 4. IMPLEMENTING AUTHORITY

- 4.1. As contemplated in Section 100 of the Act, the Municipal Manager and or Delegated Manager:
  - 4.1.1. Is responsible for implementing and enforcing this policy and the by-law;
  - 4.1.2. Is accountable to the Executive Mayor for the enforcement of this policy and shall submit a report to the Executive Mayor regarding the implementation and enforcement of the policy at such intervals as may be determined by Council;
  - 4.1.3. Must establish effective administration mechanisms, processes and procedures to collect money that is due and payable to the municipality.
- 4.2. In addition, the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall:
  - 4.2.1. Where necessary, make recommendations to the Council with the aim of improving the efficiency of the credit control and debt collection mechanisms, processes and procedures;

- 4.2.2. Establish effective communication between the municipality and account holders with the aim of keeping account holders abreast of all decisions by Council that my affect account holders;
- 4.2.3. Establish customer service customer care officials located in such communities as determined by the Municipal Manager and or Delegated Manager.
- 4.3. The Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer may, in writing, delegate any of the powers entrusted or delegated to him or her in terms of this policy or the by-law to the Chief Financial Officer.
  - 4.4. A delegation in terms of 4.3 :
    - 4.4.1. Is subject to any limitations or conditions that the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer may impose;
    - 4.4.2. May authorise the Chief Financial Officer to sub-delegate in writing duties and responsibilities to the Manager: Treasury Services.
    - 4.4.3. Does not divest the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer of the responsibility concerning the exercise of the delegated power.
- 4.5. The Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall report monthly to the executive mayor and quarterly to the council on the actions taken in terms of the by-law and on the payment levels for the periods concerned.
- 4.6. Such reports shall indicate any administrative shortcomings, the measures taken or recommended to address such shortcomings, and any actions by councillors who could reasonably be interpreted as constituting interference in the application of the by-law.
- 4.7. It is incumbent on all the officials of the municipality to promote and support both this policy and the application of the by-law. The responsibilities of all officials include reporting to the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer any evident breaches of the by-law, whether by members of the community, other officials or councillors of the municipality.

#### 5. CUSTOMER CARE AND MANAGEMENT

Customer care and management shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions of 6 to 12.

#### 6. CUSTOMER/ CLIENT/ CREDIT CONTROL CARE OFFICIALS

- 6.1. The Municipality shall establish a Customer/ Client/ Credit Care officials whose general function shall be to create a positive and reciprocal relationship between the persons liable for payments and the municipality.
- 6.2. In particular, these officials shall:
  - 6.2.1. Serve as the conduit for receiving feedback regarding the quality of services, and to this end, shall receive, process, analyse and report to the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer on such feedback;
  - 6.2.2. Provide information to customers on the costs involved in service provision, the reasons for the payment of service fees, and the manner in which monies raised from services are utilised;
  - 6.2.3. Serve as the point at which queries regarding accounts may be submitted and shall deal with such queries;
  - 6.2.4. Serve as the point at which complaints may be submitted, and shall respond to such complaints.
- 6.3. The Municipality shall ensure that the officials are adequately staffed and funded, and that appropriate provision is made for it in the Municipality's budget and staff establishment.
- 6.4. The officials shall be housed in an appropriate location in each municipal town and shall be properly equipped to deal with the matters referred to in 5.2 telephonically, by mail, e-mail and directly with the public.

#### 7. COMMUNICATIONS

The Municipality shall promote communications and feedback channels as follows:

- 7.1. This policy or relevant extracts thereof will be available in any two of the official languages;
- 7.2. Copies of this policy may be obtained from the Municipality at a cost determined by the Council from time to time and will be made available by general publication and on specific request, and will also be available for perusal at Council's offices and the official web site.
- 7.3. The municipality will endeavour to distribute a regular newsletter, which will give prominence to customer care and debt collection issues.
- 7.4. Ward councillors will be required to hold regular ward meetings, at which customer care and debt collection issues will be given prominence.
- 7.5. The press will be encouraged to give prominence to Council's customer care and debt collection issues, and will be invited to Council or Committee meetings where these are discussed.
- 7.6. In particular, the mechanisms referred to in 7.3, 7.4 and 7.5 shall be used to convey to customers information relating to the costs involved in service provision, and how funds received for the payment of services are utilised, and may where necessary employ the services of local media to convey such information.

#### 8. METERING

- 8.1. Where meters are provided for the measuring of the consumption of services, the Municipality will endeavour to ensure that they are read monthly, and as close to the same date as is practical in each month.
- 8.2. The municipality shall ensure that meters accurately record consumption.

- 8.3. If a meter is not read in any month, the municipality will estimate the consumption for the month in question, and to that end, where possible, it will base its estimate on the average consumption for the three preceding months. The next account based on an actual reading shall reflect any adjustments that need to be made to provide for any excess amount or shortfall in the estimated account.
- 8.4. Customers may request verification of meter readings.

#### 9. ACCOUNTS AND BILLING

- 9.1. Customers will receive accounts on a monthly basis for services supplied and for rates.
- 9.2. If all the services are supplied to, and the rates are payable by, a single person at the premises, then the account may be consolidated for all such services.
- 9.3. All accounts shall reflect how the amount thereof is made up and calculated, and shall include, where applicable, an indication of the units consumed.
- 9.4. Accounts shall be understandable and accurate.
- 9.5. The due date for payment shall be indicated on each account.
- 9.6. Accounts shall be sent to the address of the consumer last recorded with the Municipality.

#### 10. QUERIES AND APPEALS

10.1. A customer who believes that any account incorrectly reflects the amount owed by him or her may lodge a query regarding such account with the

customer/ client/ credit control officials in the Treasury Department or with the Manager Treasury.

- 10.2. Such query must be in writing and must specify the nature of the query and the manner in and extent to which the customer believes the amount stated in the account differs from that actually owed, and the basis for such belief.
- 10.3. The administration shall endeavour to resolve the query within 10 working days.
- 10.4. Pending resolution of the query, the customer shall nonetheless be liable to pay, on or before the due date for payment of the account in question, an amount equal to average of the amounts payable in respect of the three months preceding the month of the account in question. Any excess payment or shortfall made in terms hereof shall be adjusted and provided for in the next account.
- 10.5. For purposes of resolving the query, the customer care officials must diligently make all necessary inquiries with the relevant departments, and in accordance with the information obtained in the course of such inquiries, shall determine the amount actually payable and shall either:
  - 10.5.1. Confirm the amount stated in the account; or
  - 10.5.2. Accede to the customer's query and adjust the account according to the amount claimed by the customer; or
  - 10.5.3. Partially accede to the customer's query and adjust the account by a different amount.
- 10.6. Should the customer not be satisfied with the determination of the delegated officials and or manager, he or she may appeal to the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer against such determination.

10.7. Such appeal must be made in writing and lodged with the municipality within 21 (twenty-one) days after the notification of the administration's determination, and must:

10.7.1. Set out the reasons for the appeal.

- 10.7.2. Be accompanied by any security determined for the testing of a measuring device, if applicable.
- 10.8. Upon receipt of the appeal, the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall make such inquiries as he or she considers necessary and endeavour to determine the amount actually owed within 10 days of the appeal being made.
- 10.9. In accordance with such determination the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall:
- 10.10. Confirm the amount stated in the account; or
  - 10.10.1. Accede to the customer's appeal and adjust the account according to the amount claimed by the customer; or
  - 10.10.2. Partially accede to the customer's appeal and adjust the account by a different amount.
- 10.11. The determination of the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall be final and binding, subject, however, to the outcome of any court proceedings instituted by or against the customer in respect of the disputed amount.
- 10.12. The customer shall be notified in writing of any determination of the customer care officials or the Municipal Manager and or Delegated Manager.

#### 11. SERVICE COMPLAINTS

11.1. Should a customer have any complaint about any service rendered by the Municipality, he or she may lodge such complaint in writing, setting out full

particulars of the complaint with the Customer/ Client/ Credit control officials.

- 11.2. The officials shall investigate the matter and if it finds that the complaint is justified, shall propose such remedial action as in the circumstances is reasonable and practical to apply.
- 11.3. Such remedial action shall, however, be ratified by the Chief Financial Officer and or Manager Treasury before it is implemented.
- 11.4. The response time and efficiency in dealing with any complaint shall be monitored by the Manager Treasury.
- 11.5. Every effort must be made to resolve any complaint in the shortest possible time.
- 11.6. The customer shall be notified in writing of the outcome of any investigation and any remedial action ratified by the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer and or Treasury manager.

#### 12. PAYMENT FACILITIES

- 12.1. The Municipality shall establish accessible pay points and other mechanisms for settling accounts.
- 12.2. Such pay points and mechanisms may include:
  - 12.2.1. Cashier desks at the Municipality's offices;
  - 12.2.2. Postal payment facilities;
  - 12.2.3. On-line payment facilities;
  - 12.2.4. Direct deposit facilities;
  - 12.2.5. Third party payment facilities.
- 12.3. The municipality may in terms of section 103 of Act:

- 12.3.1. with the consent of a customer approach an employer to secure a debit or stop order arrangement to deduct any amount owed from that persons salary; and
- 12.3.2. Provide for special incentives as contemplated in section 103 of the Systems Act.

#### 13. TARGETS

The municipality shall endeavour to achieve the targets set out in Appendix A hereto.

#### 14. INDIGENT DEBTORS

- 14.1. This policy must be read in conjunction with the municipality's approved indigent policy, which is deemed to be incorporated in and form part of this policy.
- 14.2. Any debt owing by an indigent debtor, after deduction of the indigent support subsidy, shall be recovered from him or her, in accordance with this policy.

## 15. APPLICATIONS FOR SERVICES AND AGREEMENTS: ALL DEBTORS / CLIENTS

- 15.1. All applications for the provision of municipal services in respect of any immovable property shall, as from the coming into force of this policy, be made by the owner of the aforesaid property, or by the occupier of the property with the consent of the owner, in writing, and in the prescribed form.
- 15.2. Such form shall contain the terms and conditions for the provision of such services to the customer, and upon such application being accepted by the municipality, such terms and conditions shall become binding as an agreement between the municipality and such applicant.

- 15.3. Prior to signing such form, the applicant shall be entitled to inspect a copy of this policy or to purchase a copy at a price determined according to the Municipality's tariff for copying.
- 15.4. Applications for services shall be processed by the Treasury Department of the Municipality.
- 15.5. Prior to accepting such application, the Municipality shall cause all such investigations into the creditworthiness of the applicant as it deems necessary. The application form referred to above shall provide for the authorisation by the applicant of the Municipality to do so. Only if, after carrying out such investigations, the Municipality is satisfied as to the creditworthiness of the applicant shall it accept such application.
- 15.6. The Municipal Manager and or Delegated Manager, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer of the Municipality, shall for the purposes of determining the creditworthiness of applicants, establish norms setting out levels of risk which the municipality is prepared to accept in order to be satisfied as to creditworthiness. Such norms may distinguish between different categories of person.
- 15.7. If any application is accepted by the Municipality, the relevant form shall be signed on behalf of the Municipality by the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer or a member of staff to whom the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer has delegated the authority to sign.
- 15.8. If any municipal services have been provided prior to the commencement of this policy to any customer other than in terms of a written agreement, then the municipality and the customer must enter into a written agreement for the continued provision of such services by no later than six months after this policy coming into force.

#### 16. DEPOSITS

- 16.1. An applicant for the provision of municipal services shall be required to pay, before municipal services will be provided, a deposit in an amount as provided in the Municipality's tariff of charges. Such tariff may distinguish between different categories of person and may provide different deposits for different categories.
- 16.2. Such deposit may be increased at any time during the period of the provision of the service at the discretion of the Municipality up to a maximum as provided for in the Municipalities' tariff structure for the applicable financial year.
- 16.3. No interest will be payable by the Municipality on any deposits.
- 16.4. If the customer fails to pay any amount due to the Municipality by due date, the Municipality shall be entitled to deduct such amount from the deposit, in which event the Municipality may require the customer to reinstate the deposit to its full amount.
- 16.5. On the termination of the agreement the amount of the deposit, less any outstanding amount due to the municipality, will be refunded to the consumer.

#### 17. PAYMENTS

- 17.1. Every account rendered by the municipality shall be payable on or before the due date appearing on that account.
- 17.2. Failure on the part of any customer to receive an account shall not absolve that person from the responsibility to pay any account by due date, and every customer shall be responsible, by means of inquiry directed to the Municipality, to ascertain his her liability in any month.

- 17.3. Any amount which remains due and payable after the due date shall attract interest.
- 17.4. Payments may be made at established pay points or by any other established mechanism.
- 17.5. A payment shall be deemed to be late, unless it is received by the due date:
  - 17.5.1. at a municipal pay point by 15.00; or
  - 17.5.2. in the Municipality's bank account by 16.00 if payment is made by some other mechanism.
- 17.6. Electronic payments or payments made via duly authorised agents must:
  - 17.6.1. Clearly indicate the details of the customer on behalf of whom the payment is made; and.
  - 17.6.2. Must be accompanied by the relevant account numbers.

#### 18. ARRANGEMENTS TO PAY

18.1. Upon good cause shown, the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer and or delegated officials may enter into an arrangement with a debtor other than an indigent debtor for:

18.1.1. an extension of time for the payment of an outstanding account, or18.1.2. Payment of an account by way of instalments.

- A maximum of 12 months or at the discretion of the Chief Financial Officer may be allowed for an extension of time to pay.
- 18.3. An arrangement to pay by way of instalments shall provide for payment according to applicable schedules, according to the category of customer and the amount of the debt and according to the discretion of the Chief Financial Officer.
- 18.4. In addition, every such arrangement must provide for the following:18.4.1. an acknowledgement of debt by the customer;

- 18.4.2. a consent to judgement by the customer;
- 18.4.3. The payment of interest by the customer;
- 18.4.4. an acknowledgement by the customer that, if the arrangements are later defaulted on, no further arrangements will be possible and that disconnection of water and electricity will follow immediately, as will legal proceedings;
- 18.4.5. An undertaking by the customer to pay all legal costs.
- 18.5. The terms of any such arrangement shall otherwise be as approved by the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer.
- 18.6. Every such arrangement shall be recorded as a written agreement, and shall be signed on behalf of the Municipality by the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer or a person to whom the authority to sign has been delegated by the Municipal Manager.
- 18.7. Any debtor who enters into a *bona fide* arrangement with the municipality for the settlement of arrears and who fails to honour the terms of such arrangement shall not be allowed to enter into any further arrangements with the municipality unless any amount (including all interest and other charges) owing under the first-mentioned arrangement has been fully paid, or if, in the opinion of the Municipal Manager and or Delegated Manager, special circumstances exist which justify the entering into of such further arrangements.
- 18.8. No such arrangement shall be entered into with any National or Provincial Government Department, as these are expected to pay their accounts in full without delay.
- 18.9. The municipality may require as a condition of any agreement contemplated above that a prepaid system be installed in place of a metering system on the property in question.

#### 19. RESTRICTION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICES

- 19.1. The municipality may restrict, discontinue or disconnect the supply of water or any other service to any premises, whenever a customer, in respect of a particular service fails to make full payment on the due date, or fails to make an acceptable arrangement for the repayment of any amount for such particular service;
- 19.2. The Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall, where an account has not been paid by the due date, issue a written notice to the account holder stating that unless the arrears relating to such account is paid in full within seven days of the date of such notice, the services concerned may be restricted or discontinued. Such notice may be delivered by hand or post or by any other means to the address of the account holder as indicated in the Municipality's records.
- 19.3. If the debtor fails to pay the outstanding account within the aforementioned period of seven days then the municipality may restrict or discontinue the supply of the service to the Municipality.
- 19.4. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed so as to detract from the requirements of section 4(3) of the Water Services Act, 1997.
- 19.5. The chief financial officer may, in respect of an owner or occupier of a property where the water and or electricity connection has been disconnected at least twice during the preceding period of 12 (twelve) months, give notice of his or her intention to review the amount of the deposit required from that owner or occupier, which reviewed deposit shall not be less than three times the average monthly account calculated over the three immediately preceding months;

#### 19.6. Block of prepaid meters

19.6.1. Debtors, clients with prepaid meters with accounts in arrears more than 60 days may be blocked by the relevant officials in the Treasury Department. The list to be cut/ blocked must be approved by the relevant Manager Treasury or the Chief Financial Officer.

19.7. Alternatively the accounts in arrears may be put on 60/40 principle after approval of the list by the relevant Manager Treasury or the Chief Financial Officer.

#### 20. RECONNECTION OF SERVICES

The Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall authorise the reconnection of services or the reinstatement of service delivery, after satisfactory payment, or an arrangement for payment (including the payment of any reconnection charges), has been made by a debtor.

#### 21. THEFT AND FRAUD

- 21.1. Any person who consumes any services without proper authorisation or who tampers with meters or any reticulation network or any other supply equipment or who without proper authorisation connects or reconnects to municipal services, or commits any unauthorised act associated with the supply of municipal services, as well as theft of and damage to Council property, will be prosecuted.
- 21.2. The Municipality will immediately terminate the supply of services to a customer who commits any such act, and shall not reconnect such supply unless it is satisfied that the customer concerned shall not continue such conduct and until it is compensated for all loss or damage arising from such conduct. The Municipality may in such circumstances increase any deposit payable by such customer.

#### 22. INSTITUTION OF LEGAL AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

22.1. If a debtor has failed to pay by due date any amount owing to the municipality, whether in respect of water or any other services or any other cause, including the interest raised on such account, or has not made an

acceptable arrangement with the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer for the payment of the arrear account, including the interest raised on such account, then proceedings for the recovery of the amounts owing shall be instituted unless the cost of such collection and the prospects of recovery in relation to the amount of the arrears concerned would render such action non-cost-effective.

- 22.2. Such proceedings may include but need not be limited to:
  - 22.2.1. the making of a written demand;
  - 22.2.2. the handing over of any claim to collection or debt recovery agents;
  - 22.2.3. the institution of proceedings out of the appropriate court, and
  - 22.2.4. if necessary, pursuant to proceedings contemplated above, the sale in execution of property to recover arrear any amount owing (if the accountholder is also the owner of the property).
- 22.3. The Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall determine the nature and extent of proceedings to be instituted in any particular case, subject to the requirements that all action as may necessary to recover the amount outstanding must be taken, provided that such action is cost effective.
- 22.4. Such proceedings must, subject to the requirements of any law, be commenced as soon as possible.
- 22.5. All legal expenses incurred by the municipality shall be for the account of the defaulting debtor.
- 22.6. If attorneys are to be instructed to institute proceedings on behalf of the Municipality, the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer a person authorised thereto by the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer may instruct such attorneys to do so.

- 22.7. If the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer is of the opinion that the institution or continuation of proceedings for the recovery of any amount shall be fruitless or not cost -effective, the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer may recommend to the Council that such action be not commenced, or be discontinued or terminated.
- 22.8. The institution of any proceedings shall be subject to the provisions of the National Credit Act, 2005.

#### 23. ALLOCATION OF PART- PAYMENTS

If a debtor pays only part of any municipal account due, the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall, notwithstanding any instructions to the contrary given by the debtor, allocate such payment as follows:

- 23.1. first, to any unpaid charges levied by the municipality in respect of unacceptable cheques, notices, legal expenses and reconnections or reinstatements of services in respect of the account or property concerned ;
- 23.2. second, to any unpaid interest raised on the account;
- 23.3. third, to rates and
- 23.4. Fourth, to outstanding/ arrears services.

#### 24. DISHONOURED CHEQUES

If an accountholder tenders a cheque which is subsequently dishonoured by or is found to be unacceptable to the accountholder's bankers, the Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall, in addition to taking the steps contemplated in this policy against defaulting accountholders, charge such accountholder the penalty charge for unacceptable cheques, as determined by the council from time to time, and such charge shall rank equally with the costs and expenses incurred by the municipality for purposes of determining the sequence of allocations and appropriations contemplated above.

#### 25. UNCOLLECTABLE ARREARS

- 25.1. It is recognised that it may be impractical or impossible to recover certain debts.
- 25.2. The Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer shall as soon as possible after each quarter present to the council a report indicating the amount of the arrears which it is believed is uncollectable, together with the reasons for this conclusion.
- 25.3. The council shall then approve the write off of such arrears, on an annual basis if it is satisfied with the reasons provided. The write off of arrears will be according to the Write off Policy of council.

#### 26. INTEREST ON OUTSTANDING DEBTS

- 26.1. All outstanding accounts of a debtor that are not paid by due date shall attract interest at a rate to be determined by resolution of the council.
- 26.2. Interest shall be calculated on a monthly basis.
- 26.3. For purposes of determining arrear amounts, all amounts unpaid including interest previously raised and penalty charges shall be taken into account.

#### 27. REVIEW OF TARIFFS, ETC

In considering each annual budget the council shall review the adequacy of its interest charges, and shall determine the following for the financial year concerned

- 27.1. charges for disconnection or restriction of services;
- 27.2. charges for reconnection or reinstatement of services;
- 27.3. charges for notices of default;
- 27.4. penalty charges for dishonoured cheques;
- 27.5. service deposits;
- 27.6. Any other applicable charges such as tampering fees;
- 27.7. Rate of interest.

#### 28. TENDERS

- 28.1. The Municipality may require any person tendering for the supply of goods or services to the Municipality to produce a certificate issued by the Chief Financial Officer of the Municipality stating that the said person maintains regular payments on all his or her accounts.
- 28.2. Where a person fails to provide such certificate, the municipality may recover any outstanding amounts owed for service charges, by way of deductions from all monies due and owing to such person and arising from a tender awarded to or contract concluded with the said person.
- 28.3. In the application of this section, the municipality shall interpret the provisions hereof so as to be consistent with the principles and contents of its supply chain management policy.

#### 29. POWER OF ENTRY AND INSPECTION

- 29.1. For any purpose related to the implementation or enforcement of this policy, and at all reasonable times, or in an emergency, a duly authorised representative of the municipality may enter premises, request information and carry out such inspection or examination, as he or she may deem necessary:
  - 29.1.1. with regard to the installation or repair of any meter or service connection or reticulation; or
  - 29.1.2. so as to limit, discontinue, disconnect or reconnect the provision of any service.

- 29.2. If the municipality considers it necessary that work be performed to enable the authorised representative to perform a function as aforesaid properly and effectively, then it may
  - 29.2.1. by written notice require the owner or occupier of the premises, at his or her own expense, to do specific work within a specified period; or
  - 29.2.2. If, in its reasonable opinion, the situation is a matter of urgency, then the municipality may do such work, or cause it to be done, at the expense of the owner or occupier, and without written notice.

#### 30. PROCEDURES AND FORMS

The Municipal Manager and or Chief Financial Officer may prescribe:

- Procedures, which shall not be inconsistent with this policy, for the purpose of implementing this policy;
- 30.2. Forms which are required of the purpose of any application made in terms of this policy or which are otherwise required for implementing this policy.

#### 31. NATIONAL CREDIT ACT

This policy must be interpreted and applied in accordance with and subject to the requirements of the National Credit Act, 2005.

#### 32. COMMENCEMENT

This policy shall come into force on 1<sup>st</sup> of July 2018.

#### Appendix A

#### CUSTOMER SERVICE TARGETS

(i) Response time to customer queries: - Initial response within 10 working days.

(ii) Resolution of Queries: - 10 working days to resolve queries and appeals. (iii) Date of first account delivery of - By second billing cycle after date of application or occupation new customers: which even is the latest. (iv) Reconnection time: - within 24 hours after appropriate payment / arrangement. Meter reading cycle: - 95% of meters being read on (v) monthly basis on a similar date with a maximum of 3 consecutive months estimated.

#### ADMINISTRATIVE PERFORMANCE TARGETS

- (i) Cost efficiency of debt collection :
  - Cost of collection not to exceed the capital debt amount;
  - All reasonable steps to be taken to limit cost to Council or the customer;
  - Cost of collection is to be recovered from the defaulting customers;
  - Total cost of collection to be recovered by means of applicable credit control tariffs.
- (ii) Enforcement mechanism ratios :
  - 95% of total number of arrear customers being successfully notified / disconnected;



### CEDERBERG MUNICIPAL PROPERTY RATES BY-LAW

### Reviewed: May 2019

CEDERBERG municipality, hereby, in terms of section 6 of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004, has by way of COUNCIL Resolution adopted the Municipality's Property Rates By-law set out hereunder.

1

2

#### CEDERBERG MUNICIPALITY PROPERTY RATES BY-LAW(S)

#### PREAMBLE

WHEREAS section 229(1) of the Constitution requires a municipality to impose rates on property and surcharges on fees for the services provided by or on behalf of the municipality.

AND WHEREAS section 13 of the Municipal Systems Act read with section 162 of the Constitution require a municipality to promulgate municipal by-laws by publishing them in the gazette of the relevant province.

AND WHEREAS section 6 of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act,

2004 requires a municipality to adopt by-laws to give effect to the implementation of its property rates policy; the by-laws may differentiate between the different categories of properties and different categories of owners of properties liable for the payment of rates;

### NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the Council of the CEDERBERG Municipality, as follows:

#### 1. **DEFINITIONS**

In this by-law, any word or expression to which a meaning has been assigned in the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004), shall bear the same meaning unless the context indicates otherwise.

'Municipality' means CEDERBERG MUNICIPALITY;

'Property Rates Act' means the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates

Act, 2004 (Act No 6 of 2004);

**'Rates Policy' means** the policy on the levying of rates on rateable properties of the CEDERBERG MUNICIPALITY contemplated in chapter 2 of the Municipal Property Rates Act.

#### 2. OBJECTS

The object of this by-law is to give effect to the implementation of the Rates Policy as contemplated in section 6 of the Municipal Property Rates Act.

3

#### 3. ADOPTION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RATES POLICY

3.1. The Municipality shall adopt and implement its Rates Policy consistent with the Municipal Property Rates Act on the levying of rates on rateable property within the jurisdiction of the municipality; and

3.2. The Municipality shall not be entitled to levy rates other than in terms of its Rates Policy.

#### 4. CONTENTS OF RATES POLICY

The Rates Policy shall, inter alia:

4.1. Apply to all rates levied by the Municipality pursuant to the adoption of its Annual Budget;

4.2. Comply with the requirements for:

4.2.1. The adoption and contents of a rates policy specified in section 3 of the Act; 4.2.2. The process of community participation specified in section 4 of the Act; and

4.2.3. The annual review of a Rates Policy specified in section 5 of the Act.

4.3. Provide for principles, criteria and implementation measures that are consistent with the Municipal Property Rates Act for the levying of rates which the Council may adopt; and

4.4. Provide for enforcement mechanisms that are consistent with the Municipal Property Rates Act and the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000).

#### 5. ENFORCEMENT OF THE RATES POLICY

The Municipality's Rates Policy shall be enforced through the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy and any further enforcement mechanisms stipulated in the Act and the Municipality's Rates Policy.

#### 6. SHORT TITLE AND COMMENCEMENT

This By-law is called the Municipal Property Rates By-law, and takes effect on

1 July **2019**.



2019/2020

# CEDERBERG LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

**Municipal Rates Policy** 

### Table of Contents

| 1.  | BACKGROUND   | 2 |
|-----|--|---|
| 2.  | LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT  | 2 |
| 3.  | OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY   | 3 |
| 4.  | DEFINITIONS:   | 4 |
| 5.  | GENERAL PRINCIPLES:  | 8 |
| 6.  | CATEGORIES OF PROPERTIES AND OWNERS:                                 | 9 |
| 7.  | PROPERTIES USED FOR MULTIPLE PURPOSES:                               | 9 |
| 8.  | DIFFERENTIAL RATING:   | 9 |
| 9.  | CRITERIA FOR EXEMPTIONS, REDUCTIONS AND REBATES:                     |   |
| 10. | IMPERMISSIBLE RATES:   | 1 |
| Se  | ction 93 A: Transitional arrangement: Public service infrastructure1 | 1 |
| 11. | EXEMPTIONS, REDUCTIONS AND REBATES1                                  |   |
| Ex  | emptions1  | 2 |
| Re  | bates1   | 2 |
| 12. | SPECIAL INCENTIVES TO DEVELOPERS:                                    | 4 |
| 13. | CRITERIA TO QUALIFY FOR EXEMPTIONS:1                                 | 5 |
| 14. | CRITERIA TO QUALIFY FOR REBATES1                                     | 6 |
| 15. | COST OF EXEMPTIONS, REBATES & REDUCTIONS1                            | 8 |
| 16. | RATES INCREASES1   | 8 |
| 17. | NOTIFICATION OF RATES1   | 9 |
| 18. | PAYMENT OF RATES1  | 9 |
| 19. | DEFERRAL OF PAYMENT OF RATES LIABILITIES2                            | 0 |
| 20. | SPECIAL RATING AREA2   | 1 |
| 21. | SUPPLEMENTARY VALUATION DEBITS2                                      | 1 |
| 22. | OWNERSHIP  | 1 |
| 23. | RATES CLEARANCE CERTIFICATE AND RATES REFUNDS2                       | 2 |
| 24. | SECTIONAL TITLE SCHEMES2   | 3 |
| 25. | GENERAL AND SUPPLEMENTARY VALUATIONS2                                | 3 |

#### 1. BACKGROUND

- 1.1. This Policy is formulated in terms of Section 3 of the Local Government Municipal Property Rates Act, (Act 6 of 2004) as amended. In 2015 Cederberg Municipality initiated a process to prepare a General Valuation Roll of all property situated within the geographical boundaries of the Municipality in terms of this Act and has been effective as from 1 July 2016.
- 1.2. Date of valuation = 1 July 2015
- 1.3. Date of implementation = 1 July 2016

#### 2. LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

- 2.1. In terms of Section 229 of the Constitution, a Municipality may impose property rates on property.
- 2.2. In terms of Section 4(1) (c) of the Municipal Systems Act, (Act no.32 of 2000), a Municipality has the right to finance the affairs of the Municipality by imposing, inter alia, property rates on property.
- 2.3. In terms of Section 2(1) of the Municipal Property Rates Act, (Act No. 6 of 2004) as amended, a local Municipality may levy a rate on property in its area in accordance with the other provisions of this Act. Herein after referred to as the MPRAA.
- 2.4. This Policy must be read together with and is subject to the provisions of the Municipal Property Rates Act and the Property Rates By-Law.
- 2.5. In terms of Section 8(1) of the Municipal Property Rates Act (MPRAA), the Municipality is levying property rates on the use of the property as determined on the valuation roll in terms of Section 48 of this Act.
- 2.6. Rates are levied in accordance with the Act as an amount in the Rand based on the market value of all rateable property as reflected in the valuation roll and any supplementary valuation roll, as contemplated in Chapters 6 and 8, respectively, of the Act
- 2.7. Now therefore the Municipal Council of **Cederberg Local Municipality** approves and adopts the following Property Rates Policy.

### 3. OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY

#### 3.1. The key objectives of this Policy are to:

- a) ensure that all owners of rateable property are informed about their liability for rates;
- b) specify relief measures for ratepayers who may qualify for relief or partial relief in respect of the payment of rates through exemptions, reductions and rebates as contemplated in section 15 of the Act;
- c) empower the Council to specify a threshold at which rating in respect of residential properties may commence as provided for in section 15 of the Act read with section 17 (1)(h), which it is hereby authorised to do;
- d) set out the criteria to be applied by the Council if it
  - i. increases rates; and
  - ii. levies differential rates on different categories of property;
- e) provide for categories of public benefit organisations, approved in terms of section 30(1) of the Income Tax Act 58 of 1962, which are ratepayers, and may apply to the Council for relief from rates;
- f) recognise the State and the owners of public service infrastructure as property owners;
- g) encourage the development of property;
- ensure that all persons liable for rates are treated equitably as required by the Act; and
- i) provide that any rebate contemplated in paragraphs 7 of this Policy is to benefit the owner in occupation of the property.
- j) To determine the level of increases in rates, the criteria to be applied may include the following:
  - i. the inflation rate as indicated by the consumer price index excluding mortgage bonds;
  - ii. the financing of increased operating expenditure;
  - iii. the financing of additional maintenance expenditure;
  - the additional cost of servicing debt included in the operating budget of the Council;
  - v. the augmentation of any revenue shortfall;
  - vi. the financing from the annual operating budget of expenditure related to anything the Council is lawfully empowered to do for which provision has to be made in the budget;
  - vii. the taking into consideration of the medium-term budget growth factors as determined by National Treasury;

- viii. In addition to the criteria specified in subparagraph (3) above, the following criteria is taken into account in determining whether a differential rate should be applied:
- k) the need to promote economic development;
- I) any administrative advantages in applying a differential rate; and
- m) the need to alleviate the rates burden on the owners of any particular category of property specified in paragraph 7.
- n) Exemptions, rebates and reductions may only be granted as provided for in the Rates

### 4. **DEFINITIONS**:

- 4.1. For the purpose of this policy any word or expression to which a meaning has been assigned in the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (No. 6 of 2004) as amended shall bear the same meaning in this policy, and unless the context indicates otherwise-
- 4.2. Any word or expression
  - a) imparting any gender or the neuter includes both genders and the neuter, or
  - b) imparting the singular only also includes the plural and vice versa, unless the context otherwise indicates.

"agricultural use" means a farm or smallholding used for the production of goods or products through farming or forestry activities

**"bona fide farmer"** means the owner of a property who is taxed by the South African Revenue Services as a farmer;

"consent use" means the purpose for which land may lawfully be used, and for which buildings may be erected and used only with the consent of the Council;

"current monthly rates" means the rate levied on a property divided into monthly payments;

"financial year" means any period commencing on 1 July of a calendar year and ending on 30 June of the next succeeding calendar year;

"fit for purpose built" used in connection with a structure, means that the structure is fit for use/habitation for purpose for which it was built;

**"MFMA"** means the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 56 of 2003;

"municipal property" means property owned, vested or under the control and management of the Council or its service provider in terms of any applicable legislation;

"permitted use" means in relation to a property, means the limited purposes for which the property may be used in terms of -

(a) any restrictions imposed by -

- i. a condition of title;
- ii. a provision of a town planning of land use scheme; or
- iii. any legislation applicable to any specific property or properties; or
- (b) any alleviation of any such restrictions;

"privately owned property" means property not owned or vested in the state or an organ of state;

"Private towns serviced by the owner" means single properties situated in an area not ordinarily serviced by the municipality, divided through sub division or township establishment into (ten or more) full title stands and / or sectional titles and where all the rates related services inter alia for water ,electricity, sewerage and refuse removal, inclusive of water, electricity, sewerage and refuse removal and roads development are installed at the full cost of the developer and maintained and rendered by residents of such estate.

"public service infrastructure" means public service infrastructure as defined in the Act;

**"rateable property"** means property on which a municipality may in terms of Section 2 levy a rate, excluding property fully excluded from the levying of rates in terms of section 17;

"ratepayer" means any owner of rateable property as well as any owner of rateable property held under sectional title, situated within the area of jurisdiction of the Council;

"regulation" means a regulation promulgated in terms of the Act;

"school" means a school as defined in the South African Schools Act 84 of 1996;

"Sectional Titles Act" means the Sectional Titles Act, 95 of 1986;

"Sectional titles property" means sectional title units as defined in the Sectional Titles Act, 95 of 1986;

"service provider" means a service provider contemplated in paragraph (d) of the definition of Council;

"State" in so far as it relates to property owned and used by the State, means property owned and used by the National Government and Gauteng Provincial Government for the provision of community type services, including but not limited to police stations, hospitals and crematoria. All other property owned and used by the State will be classified in accordance with its zoning i.e. business for offices, residential for housing schemes and police flats etc;

"State social security grant" means any social assistance granted in terms of the Social Assistance Act 59 of 1992;

"Structures Act" means the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 117 of 1998;

"Systems Act" means the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 32 of 2000;

"technical and other colleges" means a public college and a private college as contemplated in the Further Education and Training Colleges Act, 16 of 2006;

"the Act" means the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act 6 of 2004 as amended

"threshold" means the reduction, as contemplated in section 15 of the Act, of residential property;

"Land Use Scheme" means – a land use scheme, which is in operation within the jurisdiction of the Cederberg Local Municipality contemplated in the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act, 16 of 2013, read with and it includes any town planning scheme that is still in operation in terms of any old order legislation such as the Town Planning and Townships Ordinance, 15 of 1986; and any scheme or document which in terms of any applicable legislation is legally in operation and records or sets out, by means of maps, schedules or any other document, the development rights specifying the purpose for which land may lawfully be used or any buildings may be erected, or both; "university" means any university or Technikon as defined in section 1 of the Higher Education Act 101 of 1997; The category will be based on zoning;

"zoning" means the purpose for which land may lawfully be used or for which buildings may be erected or used, or both, as contained in any applicable Town Planning Scheme and "zoned" has corresponding meaning.

### 5. GENERAL PRINCIPLES:

- 5.1. The Municipality's rates policy is based on the following principles:
  - a) Equity
  - b) Affordability
  - c) Poverty alleviation
  - d) Social and economic development
  - e) Financial sustainability and
  - f) Cost efficiency
- 5.2. Rates to balance the operating budget after taking into account the profits generated on trading and economic services and the amounts required to finance the exemptions, rebates and reductions as approved by council are levied as an amount in the Rand based on the market value of all rateable property contained in the municipality's valuation roll.
- 5.3. Rates are levied in accordance with the MPRA as a cent in the rand based on the property value contained in the Municipality's General Valuation Roll and supplementary valuations
- 5.4. The Municipality has chosen to differentiate between various categories of property and owners of property. Some categories of property and categories of owners are granted relief from rates.
- 5.5. The Municipality does not grant relief in respect of payments for rates to any category of owners of properties, or to owners of properties on an individual basis, other than by way of an exemption, rebate or reduction provided for in this policy
- 5.6. The rate charged as a cent in the rand for residential properties as per the above definitions is the base rate and the rates charged in respect of all other categories of properties are reflected as ratios to the residential rate
- 5.7. the municipality shall take the effect of the rates on Indigent residents of the Municipality into account and shall provide relief to qualifying Indigents from the payment of property rates in terms of the Municipality's Indigent Policy

## 6. CATEGORIES OF PROPERTIES AND OWNERS:

- 6.1. In terms of section 3(3) of the Act the municipality must determine the criteria for the determination of categories of property and owners for granting exemptions, reductions and rebates and criteria if it levies different rates for different categories of property.
- 6.2. In terms of sections 8(1) and 15(1) read in conjunction with section 19 of the Act the municipality may exempt a category of owner of property from rates or grant a rebate or reduction in the rates.

### 7. PROPERTIES USED FOR MULTIPLE PURPOSES:

7.1. Rates on properties used for multiple purposes will be levied based on the dominant use of the property, in relation to which the property shall be assigned a category

### 8. DIFFERENTIAL RATING:

- 8.1. Criteria for differential rating on different categories of properties in terms of section 8(1) of the Act will be according to the use of the property
- 8.2. Differential rating among the various property categories will be done by way of setting different cent amount in the rand for each property category and/or by way of reductions and rebates.
- 8.3. The municipality shall use the criteria as set out in s8(2) of the MPRA. These categories are as follows:
  - a) Residential properties;
  - b) industrial properties;
  - c) business and commercial properties;
  - d) agricultural properties;
  - e) mining properties;
  - f) properties owned by an organ of state and used for public service purposes;
  - g) public service infrastructure properties;
  - h) properties owned by public benefit organisations and used for specified public benefit activities;
  - i) properties used for multiple purposes, subject to the condition that the properties used for multiple properties shall be assigned to a category according to the dominant use of that property

# 9. CRITERIA FOR EXEMPTIONS, REDUCTIONS AND REBATES:

- 9.1. Criteria for determining categories of owners of property for the purpose of granting exemptions, rebates and reductions in terms of section 15(2) of the Act will be according to
  - a) Indigent status of the owner of a property;
  - b) Sources of income of the owner of a property;
  - c) Owners of property situated within an area affected by-
  - a disaster within the meaning of the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 of 2002); or
  - ii. Any other serious adverse social or economic conditions;
  - Owners of improved residential properties with a market value below a determined threshold of R50 000.
  - e) Owners temporarily without income.
  - f) The services provided to the community by public service organizations.
  - g) The need to preserve the cultural heritage of the local community.
  - h) The need to encourage the expansion of psi's.
  - The need to accommodate indigents, less affluent pensioners and people depending on social grants for their livelihood.
  - j) the inability of residential property owners to pass on the burden of rates, as opposed to the ability of the owners of business, commercial, industrial and certain other properties to recover such rates as part of the expenses associated with the goods or services, they produce
  - k) The value of agricultural activities to the local economy coupled with the limited municipal services extended to such activities, but also taking into account the municipal services provided to municipal residents who are employed in such activities.; or
  - I) owners of agricultural properties who are bona fide farmers;
  - m) Registered owners of Residential Properties who are pensioners qualify for special rebates according to gross monthly household income of all persons permanently residing on that property. To qualify for the rebate a property owner must be a natural person and the registered owner of a property which satisfies the requirements of the definition of Residential

Property. This property owner must on 1 July of each financial year: occupy the property as his/her Primary Residence, and be at least 60 years of age, or has been declared medically unfit even if not yet 60 years of age and be in receipt of a gross monthly household income not exceeding the amount determined by Council during the Municipality's budget process.

- n) The requirements of the Act.
- o) Places of Worship; Churches or other bona fide places of worship (in the case of other religions), and one main residential property where the fulltime pastor or reverend resides, as being the property registered in the name of the church

### 10. IMPERMISSIBLE RATES:

10.1. The municipality may not levy rates on categories of property and categories of owners of property as determined in sections 16(1) & 17(1) of the Act.

Section 93 A: Transitional arrangement: Public service infrastructure

Rates may not be levied on the following properties referred to in the definition of public service infrastructure:

- a) Roads;
- b) Water infrastructure;
- c) Rail infrastructure;
- Airports and the vacant land surrounding it which must be vacant for air navigation purposes;
- e) Breakwaters, quays etc.
- f) The prohibition on levying rates on the above properties must be phased in with effect 1<sup>st</sup> July 2018 in line with the requirements of

# 11. EXEMPTIONS, REDUCTIONS AND REBATES

11.1. Over and above the exemptions provided for in paragraph 10 above, specific categories of property as indicated in the table below are exempted from the payment of rates within the meaning of section 15(1)(a) of the Act and section 10 of this policy.

| Description of category of property   | % Exemption |
|---|-------------|
| Municipal properties  | 100%        |
| Cemeteries and Crematoriums   | 100%        |
| Public service infrastructure (PSI)   | 100%        |
| Registered Public Benefit organizations   | 100%        |
| Registered Museums  | 100%        |
| Registered National Monuments   | 100%        |
| A right registered against immovable property   | 100%        |
| Registered Old Age Homes  | 100%        |
| Improved Residential Properties with a General Valuation less than R50 000;   | 100%        |
| Protected Areas/ Nature Reserves  | 100%        |
| Places of Worship, Churches and one main residential<br>property where the full-time pastor or reverend resides,<br>as being the property registered in the | 100%        |
| name of the church.   |             |

### Rebates

Exemptions

The municipality may grant rebates within the meaning of section 15(1) (b) of the Act on the rates to the owners of the following categories of properties.

| Description o  | f category of property                         | % Rebate     |
|--|--|--------------|
| Self-Sustainal                                       | ble towns without municipal                    | 75% (Rebate) |
| services outsi                                       | de municipal towns at Residential Rate. (No    |              |
| R50k Discoun   | t) As per application.(Doorsprong,             |              |
| Soopjeshoog  | te, Bulshoek, Cedar Lake Development)          |              |
|  |  | 75% Debate   |
|  | applicable to all agricultural properties.     | 75% Rebate   |
| Qualifying requirements are that the owner should be |  |              |
| taxed by SA  | RS as a bona fide farmer and the last tax      |              |
| assessment n   | nust be provided as proof                      |              |
| Registered o   | wners of residential properties who are        | Maximum 40%  |
| pensioners qu  | ualify for special rebates                     |              |
| The municip  | ality may grant rebates to properties in       | Maximum 25%  |
| Crystal and B  | lue Waters on the basis that promote local,    |              |
| social and eco                                       | onomic development in its area or, based on    |              |
| its Local, Soci                                      | al and Economic Development issues.            |              |
| The municipa   | ality shall consider the following criteria in |              |
| deciding whe   | ther to provide rebates to these customers:    |              |
| a)   | Job creation in the municipal area;            |              |
| b)   | Social upliftment of the local community;      |              |
|  | and  |              |
| c)   | Creation of infrastructure for the benefit of  |              |
|  | the community.                                 |              |
| Debetee will b                                       |  |              |
|  | be granted on application subject to:          |              |
| a)   | A business plan issued by the directors of     |              |
|  | the company indicating how the local, social   |              |
|  | and economic development objectives of the     |              |
|  | municipality are going to be met;              |              |
|  |  |              |

## 12. SPECIAL INCENTIVES TO DEVELOPERS:

- 12.1. Rebates will be granted as incentives to Cederberg Mill Mall and phased out over a 6-year period to Investors whom contribute to large capital developments and infrastructure to the Cederberg area. This will be stipulated in a development agreement.
- 12.2. The following rates rebates will be implemented.

| Rates Year | Rebate  |
|------------|---------|
| Year 1     | 100,00% |
| Year 2     | 100,00% |
| Year 3     | 100,00% |
| Year 4     | 100,00% |
| Year 5     | 100,00% |
| Year 6     | 95,00%  |
| Year 7     | 0,00%   |

The property will be fully ratable from Year 7 of initial rating.

- 12.3. The rate in rand, as well as the rebates, will be determined and approved by Council when the budget and tariffs are annually submitted for consideration.
- 12.4. This rebate is available as a special incentive to all major developers subject to the following:
  - a) The rebate is approved by a Council Resolution
  - b) The rebate is budgeted for in the relevant year

# 13. CRITERIA TO QUALIFY FOR EXEMPTIONS:

### 13.1. Public Benefit Organisations

Public benefit organizations, inclusive of Old Age Homes, Museums, National Monuments as provided for in this Rates Policy may apply for the exemption of property rates subject to producing a tax exemption certificate issued by the South African Revenue Services (SARS) as contemplated in Part 1 of the Ninth Schedule of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (No 58 of 1962):

- 13.2. Exemptions will be subject to the following conditions:
  - a) All applications must be addressed in writing to the municipality;
  - b) A SARS tax exemption certificate must be attached to all applications;
  - c) The municipal manager or his/her nominee must approve all applications;
  - Applications must reach the municipality before the end of October preceding the start of the new municipal financial year for which relief is sought; and
  - e) The municipality retains the right to refuse exemptions if the details supplied in the application form were incomplete, incorrect or false.

### 14. CRITERIA TO QUALIFY FOR REBATES

#### 14.1. Agricultural use

A farm must be devoted primarily to the practice of producing and managing food (produce, grains or livestock) or forestry products. The operation must be taxed as a bona fide farmer for income tax purposes by SARS, and the owner of the property must provide a tax certificate to that effect by SARS; failing which the property owner will not obtain the benefit for that year of assessment. Agricultural property shall be rated at a ratio of 1:0.25 of the residential property rate.

- 14.2. Self-Sustainable towns without municipal services outside municipal towns will be rated at the residential rate; they will not qualify for the exemption normally available to residential customers. Towns to be identified by Council's Valuer.
- 14.3. The municipality may grant rebates to enterprises that promote local, social and economic development in its area of jurisdiction, based on its Local, Social and Economic Development Policy.

The municipality shall consider the following criteria in deciding whether to provide rebates to these customers:

- d) Job creation in the municipal area;
- e) Social upliftment of the local community; and
- f) Creation of infrastructure for the benefit of the community.

Rebates will be granted on application subject to:

- b) A business plan issued by the directors of the company indicating how the local, social and economic development objectives of the municipality are going to be met;
- c) A continuation plan issued by the directors and certified by auditors of the company stating that the objectives have been met in the first year after establishment and how the company plan to continue to meet the objectives;
- d) An assessment by the municipal manager or his/her nominee indicating that the company qualifies; and
- e) A municipal resolution.
- 14.4. Retired and Disabled Persons Rate Rebate

To qualify for the rebate a property owner must:

- a) occupy the property as his/her normal residence;
- b) be at least 60 years of age or in receipt of a disability pension from the Department of Welfare and Population Development;
- c) Be in receipt of a total monthly income from all sources (including income of spouses of owner) not exceeding the amount annually set by the council.
- d) not be the owner of more than one property; and
- Provided that where the owner is unable to occupy the property due to no fault of his/her own, the spouse or minor children may satisfy the occupancy requirement.
- Property owners must apply on a prescribed application form for a rebate as determined by the municipality.
- g) Applications must be accompanied by-
  - a certified copy of the identity document or any other proof of the owners age which is acceptable to the municipality;
  - ii. sufficient proof of income of the owner and his/her spouse;
  - iii. an affidavit from the owner;
  - iv. if the owner is a disabled person proof of a disability pensionpayable by the state must be supplied; and
  - v. If the owner has retired at an earlier stage for medical reasons proof thereof must be submitted.
- h) These applications must reach the municipality before the end of October preceding the start of the new municipal financial year for which relief is sought.
- The municipality retains the right to refuse rebates if the details supplied in the application form are incomplete, incorrect or false.
- 14.5. Other Rebates
  - a) Owners of rateable property registered in the name of institutions or organizations, which in the opinion of the council, performs the following:
    - i. welfare, charitable and humanitarian work;
    - ii. cultural work; amateur sport and social activities;
    - iii. protect or maintain collections or buildings of historical or cultural interest, including art galleries, archives and libraries;
    - iv. conservation; environment and animal welfare; education and

development; health care;

- v. agricultural (Experimental farms); municipal property and usage
- vi. where the council is engaged in land sales transactions which take place after the financial year has started;
- vii. where the municipality register a road reserve or servitude on a privately-owned property a pro-rata rebate equal to the value of the
- viii. reserve or servitude will be given to the owner;
- ix. State hospitals, clinics and institutions for mentally ill persons, which are not performed for gain.
- b) These applications must reach the municipality before the end of October preceding the start of the new municipal financial year for which relief is sought.

# 15. COST OF EXEMPTIONS, REBATES & REDUCTIONS

- 15.1. The Chief Financial Officer must inform the council of all the costs associated with the exemptions, rebates & reductions.
- 15.2. Provisions must be made in the operating budget for the full potential income associated with property rates, and the full cost of the exemptions, rebates & reductions. A list of all exemptions, rebates & reductions must be tabled before council.

### 16. RATES INCREASES

- 16.1. The municipality will consider increasing rates annually during the budget process in terms of the guidelines issued by National Treasury from time to time.
- 16.2. Rate increases will be used to finance the increase in operating costs of community and subsidized services.
- 16.3. Relating to community and subsidized services the following annual adjustments will be made:
  - a) All salary and wage increase as agreed at the South African Local Government Bargaining Council
  - b) An inflation adjustment for general expenditure, repairs and maintenance and contributions to statutory funds, and

- c) Additional depreciation costs or interest and redemption on loans associated with the assets created during the previous financial year.
- d) Extraordinary expenditure related to community services not foreseen during the previous budget period and approved by the council during a budget review process will be financed by an increase in property rates.
- e) Affordability of rates to ratepayers.
- 16.4. All increases in property rates will be communicated to the local community in terms of the municipality's policy on community participation.

# 17. NOTIFICATION OF RATES

- 17.1. The municipality will give notice of all rates approved at the annual budget meeting at least 30 days prior to the date that the rates become effective. Accounts delivered after the 30 days' notice will be based on the new rates.
- 17.2. A notice stating the purport of the municipality's resolution and the date on which the new rates become operational will be advertised in the media and the resolution will be displayed by the municipality at places provide for in legislation and the municipality's website and also promulgated in terms of and in accordance with section 14 of the Act.

### 18. PAYMENT OF RATES

- 18.1. Ratepayers may, by special written arrangements with the council, choose to pay rates annually in one instalment on or before 30 September, normally the rates will be payable in twelve equal instalments on or before the tenth day of the month following on the month in which it becomes payable.
- 18.2. The municipality must furnish each person liable for rates with a detailed account as set out in section 27 of the Act.
- 18.3. Interest on arrears rates, whether payable on or before 30 September or in equal monthly instalments, shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Control, Debt Collection and Indigent Policy of the municipality.

- 18.4. If a property owner, who is responsible for the payment of property rates in terms of this policy, fails to pay such rates in the prescribed manner, it will be recovered from him/her in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Control, Debt Collection and Indigent Policy of the Municipality.
- 18.5. Joint owners are jointly and severally liable for the amount due for rates. In the case of agricultural property, the rates due will be recovered as stipulated in the council's Rates Policy.
- 18.6. Arrears rates shall be recovered from tenants, occupiers and agents of the owner, in terms of section 28 and 29 of the Act.
- 18.7. Where the rates levied on a particular property have been incorrectly determined, whether because of an error or omission on the part of the municipality or false information provided by the property owner concerned or a contravention of the permitted use to which the property concerned may be put, the rates payable shall be appropriately adjusted for the period extending from the date on which the error or omission is detected back to the date on which rates were first levied in terms of the current valuation roll.
- 18.8. Supplementary Valuations will be implemented during the year of review and date of the property to be billed on the amended valuation will be determined by Senior Management but not later than 3 months after the valuation has been performed.
- 18.9. In addition, where the error occurred because of false information provided by the property owner or as a result of a contravention of the permitted use of the property concerned, interest on the unpaid portion of the adjusted rates payable shall be levied at the maximum rate permitted by prevailing legislation.

### 19. DEFERRAL OF PAYMENT OF RATES LIABILITIES

19.1. The municipality will consider each application for deferral of rates, taking into account the merits and demerits of each and the financial implications thereof in so far, the cash-flow of the municipality is concerned.

19.2. Applications for deferral pf payment must be made to the Municipality in writing

## 20. SPECIAL RATING AREA

- 20.1. The municipality may by council resolution, after consultation with the local community to obtain the majority's consent, determine an area within its boundaries as a special rating area for the purpose of raising funds for improving or upgrading that area; and differentiate between categories of property when levying an additional rate.
- 20.2. The municipality must determine the boundaries and indicate how the area is to be improved by the additional rates and establish a separate accounting and record- keeping system regarding the income & expenditure.
- 20.3. The municipality may establish a committee representing the Community to act as a consultative and advisory forum.
- 20.4. Representivity, including gender must be taken into account when establishing such a committee.

### 21. SUPPLEMENTARY VALUATION DEBITS

21.1. In the event that a property has been transferred to a new owner and a Supplementary Valuation took place, the previous owner as well as the new owner will jointly and separately be held responsible for the outstanding amount due for rates.

# 22. OWNERSHIP

22.1. Properties which vests in the municipality during developments i.e. open spaces and roads should be transferred at the cost of the developer to the municipality. Until such time, rates levied will be for the account of the developer

### 23. RATES CLEARANCE CERTIFICATE AND RATES REFUNDS

- 23.1. All monies collected by the Municipality including in respect of Special Rating Areas (including City Improvement Districts) and any estimated amounts for the duration of the validation period of a certificate in terms of Section 118(1) (a) of the Systems or Section 89 of the Insolvency Act, (Act 24 of 1936), are for the purpose of Section 118 of the Systems Act, deemed to be due and must be paid in order to facilitate the transfer of immovable property:
  - a) all amounts that are due must be paid in full prior to the issuing of any clearance certificate in terms of Section 118, of the Systems Act;
  - b) developer's contributions will be due and payable before any rates Clearance certificate is issued on new erven developments;
  - c) in the case of new sectional title developments payment of developer's contribution will be due before services will be connected;
  - no interest shall be paid by the Municipality to the registered seller in respect of these payments which are deemed to be due; and
  - e) all payments will be allocated to the registered seller's municipal accounts and all refunds will be made to the transferring attorney;
  - f) refunds will only be issued on written request or application for refund of the transferring attorney;
  - g) Refunds will be allocated to arrear service debt of tenants and only the balance will be refunded.
  - h) Refunds will not be issued if the services have not been connected on the new owner and the deed confirming new ownership is received.
  - Outstanding services of tenants may only be recovered for a maximum period of two years if a request is lodged for a Section 118 (1) of the Municipal Systems Act (32 of 2000) Clearance Certificate. If this is done the conveyancer as well as the buyer of the property must be informed that the remaining debt will remain on the property according to subsection 3, the buyer will then be held responsible for it.
  - j) The clearance certificate will only be valid for 60 days;
  - k) Extension on a clearance certificate will be granted, if all services is paid in advance for another 60 days; If the valid period surpasses 30 June of the year in which the request was received, the total annual debit for the following financial year will be payable.

## 24. SECTIONAL TITLE SCHEMES

24.1. A rate on property which is subject to a sectional title scheme will be levied on the individual sectional title units in the scheme.

# 25. GENERAL AND SUPPLEMENTARY VALUATIONS

- 25.1. The municipality shall prepare a new general valuation roll of all properties at least every (5) five years and at least one supplementary valuation roll annually; The General valuation roll takes effect from the start of the financial year following completion of the public inspection period and remains valid for that financial year or for one or more subsequent financial years, as the municipality may decide, but in total not for more than 5 (five) financial years.
- 25.2. The Supplementary Valuation roll remains valid for the duration of the current general valuation roll.

23 | Page